A regular meeting was held in person and virtually with the meeting originating at City Hall, Canby Minnesota on January 15<sup>th</sup>, 2025, at 6pm.

Members: Nancy Bormann, Diana Fliss, Marisa Kack, Denise Hanson, Susan Cram

Absent: None

Visitors: Bonnie Merritt, City Administrator

Thalia Sik, Administrative Secretary

Gerald Boulton, City Attorney

Josh Van Klompenburg

Krystle Thovson Andy Kreuzer Tom Miller

Virtually Attending:

John Meyer

The regular Council meeting was called to order.

Oath of Offices were given by Cram, Fliss, and Hanson.

The agenda was reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Kack to approve the agenda with the addition of the January 10<sup>th</sup> meeting minutes. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

The council minutes from the December 18<sup>th</sup> meeting were reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Hanson to approve the December 18<sup>th</sup> minutes. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

The council minutes from the January  $10^{th}$  meeting were reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Kack to approve the January  $10^{th}$  minutes. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

A certificate of appreciation was presented to Andy Kreuzer for his outstanding service and volunteerism which have made a significant contribution to the City of Canby Cemetery.

Tom Miller was present to discuss his water bill. Sometime in December, Miller had a leak which resulted in his water usage spiking to over 100,000 gallons. He asked the council to consider deducting the sewer portion from his bill because he stated his sewer is plugged and the water did not go down the sewer. After discussion, no action was taken but it was stated that the city would work with him on a payment plan if necessary.

Bormann informed the council that she met with Bonnie Merritt for her 6-month review.

The AFSCME Union Contract was reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Cram to approve the contract. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

The IBEW Union Contract was reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Cram to approve the contract. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

Council Designations were reviewed. A motion was made by Hanson and seconded by Kack to approve the 2025 council designations with adding Susan Cram to the airport board and HRA board. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

The PLM Lake and Land Management Contract was discussed. A motion was made by Hanson and seconded by Fliss to approve the contract. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

Resolution 2025-01-15-1 was reviewed. A motion was made by Cram and seconded by Hanson to approve Resolution 2025-01-15-1. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

## Resolution 2025-01-15-1 A Resolution Designating Signatories for Financial Institution and the Powers and Limitations Thereof

Be It Resolved, by the City Council for the City of Canby, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as "City", and First Security Bank Canby, hereinafter referred to as "Financial Institution" that the following resolutions are hereby adopted.

Any signatories ("Agent") listed below, subject to any written limitations, are authorized to exercise the powers granted as indicated below:

Name and Title of Position:	Signature:
A. Nancy Bormann, Mayor	
B. Diana Fliss, Alderman	
C. Marisa Kack, Alderman	
D. Bonnie Merritt, City Administrator	
E. Sara Wollum, Account Clerk	
F. Thalia Sik, Administrative Secretary	

### **Powers Granted:**

Indicate A, B, C,	Description of Power	Number of
D, E or F		Signatures
		Required
A, B, C, D	Exercise all of the powers listed in this resolution	2
A, B, C, D	Open any deposit or share account(s) in the name of the City	2
A, B, C, D, E, F	Endorse checks and orders for the payment of money or otherwise	2
	withdraw or transfer funds on deposit with this Financial Institution	
A, B, C, D	Borrow money on behalf and in the name of the City, sign, execute and	2
	deliver promissory notes or other evidences of indebtedness	
A, B, C, D	Endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage or pledge bills receivables,	2
	stocks, bonds, real estate, or other property now owned or hereafter owned	
	or acquired by the City as security for sums borrowed, and to discount the	
	same, unconditionally guaranteed payment of all bills received,	
	negotiated or discounted and to waive demand, presentment, and protest,	
	notice of protest and notice of non-payment	
A, B, C, D	Enter into a written lease for the purpose of sending, maintaining,	2
	accessing and terminating a Safe Deposit Box in this Financial Institution	
A, B, C, D, E, F	Access Safe Deposit Box in this Financial Institution	1

#### **Limitations on Powers:**

There are no limitations on powers set herein.

## **Further Resolutions:**

- 1. The Financial Institution is designated as a depository for the funds of the City and to provide other financial accommodations indicated in the resolution.
- 2. This resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of its rescission or modification has been received by the Financial Institution. Any and all prior resolutions adopted by the City Council and certified to the Financial Institution as governing the operation of this city's account(s) are in full force and effect until the Financial Institution receives and acknowledges an express written notice of its revocation, modification, or replacement. Any revocation, modification, or replacement of a resolution must be accompanied by documentation, satisfactory to the Financial Institution, establishing the authority for the changes.
- 3. The signature of an Agent on this resolution is conclusive evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the City. Any Agent, so long as they act in a representative capacity as agents of the City, is authorized to make any and all other contracts, agreements, stipulations and orders which they may deem advisable for the effective exercise of the powers indicated in this resolution, from time to time with the Financial Institution, subject to any restrictions on this resolution or otherwise agreed to in writing.
- 4. All transactions, if any, with respect to any deposits, withdrawals, rediscounts and borrowings by or on behalf of the City with the Financial Institution prior to the application of this resolution hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed.
- 5. The City agrees to the terms and conditions of any account agreement, properly opened by any Agent of the City. The City authorizes the Financial Institution, at any time, to charge the City for all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on the Financial Institution, so long as they contain the required number of signatures for this purpose.

### **Certification of Authority:**

This is to certify that the City Council of the City has, and at the time of adoption of this resolution had, full power, and lawful authority to adopt the preceding resolutions and to confer the powers granted to the persons named who have full power and lawful authority to exercise the same.

In WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name and to this document on January 15th, 2025.

Attest:		
	Mayor	
City Administrator		

Resolution 2025-01-15-2 was reviewed. A motion was made by Kack and seconded by Cram to approve Resolution 2025-01-15-2. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

## Resolution 2025-01-15-2 A Resolution Designating Signatories for Financial Institution and the Powers and Limitations Thereof

Be It Resolved, by the City Council for the City of Canby, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Co-op Credit Union of Montevideo, hereinafter referred to as "Financial Institution" that the following resolutions are hereby adopted.

Any signatories ("Agent") listed below, subject to any written limitations, are authorized to exercise the powers granted as indicated below:

Name and Title of Position:	Signature:
A. Nancy Bormann, Mayor	
B. Diana Fliss, Alderman	
C. Marisa Kack, Alderman	
D. Bonnie Merritt, City Administrator	

E.	Sara Wollum, Account Clerk	
F.	Thalia Sik Administrative Secretary	

#### **Powers Granted:**

Indicate A, B, C,	Description of Power	Number of
D, E or F		Signatures
		Required
A, B, C, D	Exercise all of the powers listed in this resolution	2
A, B, C, D	Open any deposit or share account(s) in the name of the City	2
A, B, C, D, E, F	Endorse checks and orders for the payment of money or otherwise	2
	withdraw or transfer funds on deposit with this Financial Institution	
A, B, C, D	Borrow money on behalf and in the name of the City, sign, execute and	2
	deliver promissory notes or other evidences of indebtedness	
A, B, C, D	Endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage or pledge bills receivables,	2
	stocks, bonds, real estate, or other property now owned or hereafter owned	
	or acquired by the City as security for sums borrowed, and to discount the	
	same, unconditionally guaranteed payment of all bills received,	
	negotiated or discounted and to waive demand, presentment, and protest,	
	notice of protest and notice of non-payment	
A, B, C, D	Enter into a written lease for the purpose of sending, maintaining,	2
	accessing and terminating a Safe Deposit Box in this Financial Institution	
A, B, C, D, E, F	Access Safe Deposit Box in this Financial Institution	1

#### **Limitations on Powers:**

There are no limitations on powers set herein.

#### **Further Resolutions:**

- 6. The Financial Institution is designated as a depository for the funds of the City and to provide other financial accommodations indicated in the resolution.
- 7. This resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of its rescission or modification has been received by the Financial Institution. Any and all prior resolutions adopted by the City Council and certified to the Financial Institution as governing the operation of this city's account(s) are in full force and effect until the Financial Institution receives and acknowledges an express written notice of its revocation, modification, or replacement. Any revocation, modification, or replacement of a resolution must be accompanied by documentation, satisfactory to the Financial Institution, establishing the authority for the changes.
- 8. The signature of an Agent on this resolution is conclusive evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the City. Any Agent, so long as they act in a representative capacity as agents of the City, is authorized to make any and all other contracts, agreements, stipulations and orders which they may deem advisable for the effective exercise of the powers indicated in this resolution, from time to time with the Financial Institution, subject to any restrictions on this resolution or otherwise agreed to in writing.
- 9. All transactions, if any, with respect to any deposits, withdrawals, rediscounts and borrowings by or on behalf of the City with the Financial Institution prior to the application of this resolution hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed.
- 10. The City agrees to the terms and conditions of any account agreement, properly opened by any Agent of the City. The City authorizes the Financial Institution, at any time, to charge the City for all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on the Financial Institution, so long as they contain the required number of signatures for this purpose.

## **Certification of Authority:**

This is to certify that the City Council of the City has, and at the time of adoption of this resolution had, full power, and lawful authority to adopt the preceding resolutions and to confer the powers granted to the persons named who have full power and lawful authority to exercise the same.

In WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name and to this document on January 15th, 2025.

Attest:		
	Mayor	
City Administrator		

Resolution 2025-01-15-3 was reviewed. A motion was made by Cram and seconded by Hanson to approve Resolution 2025-01-15-3. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

# Resolution 2025-01-15-3 A Resolution Designating Signatories for Financial Institution and the Powers and Limitations Thereof

Be It Resolved, by the City Council for the City of Canby, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as "City", and State Bank of Taunton, hereinafter referred to as "Financial Institution" that the following resolutions are hereby adopted. Any signatories ("Agent") listed below, subject to any written limitations, are authorized to exercise the powers granted as indicated below:

Name and Title of Position:	Signature:
A. Nancy Bormann, Mayor	
B. Diana Fliss, Alderman	
C. Marisa Kack, Alderman	
D. Bonnie Merritt, City Administrator	
E. Sara Wollum, Account Clerk	
F. Thalia Sik, Administrative Secretary	

#### **Powers Granted:**

Indicate A, B, C,	Description of Power	Number of
D, E or F		Signatures
		Required
A, B, C, D	Exercise all of the powers listed in this resolution	2
A, B, C, D	Open any deposit or share account(s) in the name of the City	2
A, B, C, D, E, F	Endorse checks and orders for the payment of money or otherwise	2
	withdraw or transfer funds on deposit with this Financial Institution	
A, B, C, D	Borrow money on behalf and in the name of the City, sign, execute and	2
	deliver promissory notes or other evidences of indebtedness	
A, B, C, D	Endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage or pledge bills receivables,	2
	stocks, bonds, real estate, or other property now owned or hereafter owned	
	or acquired by the City as security for sums borrowed, and to discount the	
	same, unconditionally guaranteed payment of all bills received,	
	negotiated or discounted and to waive demand, presentment, and protest,	
	notice of protest and notice of non-payment	
A, B, C, D	Enter into a written lease for the purpose of sending, maintaining,	2
	accessing and terminating a Safe Deposit Box in this Financial Institution	
A, B, C, D, E, F	Access Safe Deposit Box in this Financial Institution	1

## **Limitations on Powers:**

There are no limitations on powers set herein.

## **Further Resolutions:**

11. The Financial Institution is designated as a depository for the funds of the City and to provide other financial accommodations indicated in the resolution.

- 12. This resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of its rescission or modification has been received by the Financial Institution. Any and all prior resolutions adopted by the City Council and certified to the Financial Institution as governing the operation of this city's account(s) are in full force and effect until the Financial Institution receives and acknowledges an express written notice of its revocation, modification, or replacement. Any revocation, modification, or replacement of a resolution must be accompanied by documentation, satisfactory to the Financial Institution, establishing the authority for the changes.
- 13. The signature of an Agent on this resolution is conclusive evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the City. Any Agent, so long as they act in a representative capacity as agents of the City, is authorized to make any and all other contracts, agreements, stipulations and orders which they may deem advisable for the effective exercise of the powers indicated in this resolution, from time to time with the Financial Institution, subject to any restrictions on this resolution or otherwise agreed to in writing.
- 14. All transactions, if any, with respect to any deposits, withdrawals, rediscounts and borrowings by or on behalf of the City with the Financial Institution prior to the application of this resolution hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed.
- 15. The City agrees to the terms and conditions of any account agreement, properly opened by any Agent of the City. The City authorizes the Financial Institution, at any time, to charge the City for all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on the Financial Institution, so long as they contain the required number of signatures for this purpose.

## **Certification of Authority:**

This is to certify that the City Council of the City has, and at the time of adoption of this resolution had, full power, and lawful authority to adopt the preceding resolutions and to confer the powers granted to the persons named who have full power and lawful authority to exercise the same.

In WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name and to this document on January 15th, 2025.

Attest:		
	Mayor	
City Administrator	<u> </u>	

Resolution 2025-01-15-4 was reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and second by Kack to approve Resolution 2025-01-15-4. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

## City of Canby Resolution 2025-01-15-4

## A Resolution Setting the Utility Rate Charges for the City of Canby for 2025

The City Council for the City of Canby does hereby ordain:

WHEREAS, the City has committed to funding its infrastructure replacement for future years through increased utility rate charges; and

WHEREAS, under the advisement of the utility rate study completed in 2021 the City is to increase its utility rates each year;

THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF CANBY;

The utility rate charges for the City of Canby for 2025 are updated to be as follows:

Water

Base Charge - \$19.53

Use Charge - \$0.00622 per gallon

Sewer

Base Charge – \$22.54

Use Charge – \$0.00390 per gallon

John Meyer was virtually attending to discuss the bid tabulation for the \$500,000 General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2025A. A motion was made by Hanson and seconded by Fliss to accept the winning bid in the amount of \$490,245.00 from United Bankers' Bank with a net effective interest rate of 4.5271%. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

City Administrator

Resolution 2025-01-15-6 was reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Cram to approve Resolution 2025-01-15-6. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

Member <u>Fliss</u> introduced the following resolution and moved for its adoption, the reading of which was dispensed with by unanimous consent:

#### RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01-15-6

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF \$500,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2025A, TO PAY A PORTION OF THE COSTS OF LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS THEREFOR; CREATING A CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT AND A DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT THEREFOR; AND AWARDING THE SALE THEREOF

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Canby, Yellow Medicine County, Minnesota (the "Issuer"), as follows:

Section 1. Bond Purpose, Authorization, and Award.

#### 1.01 Authority and Purpose.

- A. Pursuant to authority contained in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 429 and 475 and the City's Charter, the City Council does direct the issuance and sale of \$500,000 General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2025A of the Issuer dated January 15, 2025 (the "Bonds"), for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of local public improvements which are to be paid for in part by special assessments levied or to be levied upon benefited property (the "Project"), for payment of part of the interest cost of the Bonds herein and for payment of part of the issuance costs of the Bonds. The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be paid primarily from special assessments levied upon benefited property and ad valorem taxes. The Project is ordered as required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 429.091, Subdivision 1.
- B. The Bonds shall provide funds to finance the Project. The total cost of the Project, which shall include all costs enumerated in Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.65, is estimated to be at least equal to the amount of the Bonds. Work on the Project shall proceed with due diligence to completion. The Issuer covenants that it shall do all things and perform all acts required of it to assure that work on the Project proceeds with due diligence to completion and that any and all permits and studies required under law for the Project are obtained.
- 1.02 <u>Independent Financial Advisor.</u> The Issuer has retained the services of John W. Meyer PhDs its independent financial advisor.
- 1.03 Award of Sale. The Issuer has received an offer from United Bankers' Bank of Bloomington, Minneosta (the "Purchaser"), to purchase the Bonds at a cash price of \$490,245.00, upon the terms and conditions hereafter specified in this Resolution. The City Council, after due consideration, finds such offer reasonable and proper and the offer of the Purchaser is accepted. The Mayor and the Administrator are authorized and directed to execute on the part of the Issuer a contract for the sale of the Bonds in accordance with the Purchaser's proposal, and to acknowledge receipt of the check given for the security of the proposal, if any.

#### Section 2. Terms of the Bonds.

- 2.01 <u>Date and Maturities</u>. A. The Bonds to be issued hereunder shall be issued as fully-registered bonds designated \$500,000 General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2025A, dated January 15, 2025, as of the date of original issue, issued in the denomination of \$5,000, or any integral multiple thereof, in fully registered form and lettered and numbered R-1 and upward.
- B. The Bonds shall mature on February 1 in the years and amounts stated below and shall bear interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date (as hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from the date of original issue until paid at the rates per annum set forth below opposite such years and amounts:

Year	Amount	Interest Rate
2025	\$20,000	4.00%
2026	\$20,000	4.00%
2027	\$20,000	4.00%
2028	\$20,000	4.00%
2029	\$20,000	4.00%
2030	\$20,000	4.00%
2031	\$25,000	4.00%
2032	\$25,000	4.00%
2033	\$25,000	4.00%
2034	\$25,000	4.00%
2035	\$25,000	4.00%
2036	\$25,000	4.30%
2037	\$25,000	4.30%

Year	Amount	Interest Rate
2038	\$25,000	4.30%
2039	\$25,000	4.30%
2040	\$25,000	4.30%
2041	\$30,000	4.60%
2042	\$30,000	4.60%
2043	\$30,000	4.60%
2044	\$30,000	4.60%
2045	\$30,000	4.60%

C. The maturities of the Bonds, together with the maturities of all other outstanding general obligation bonds of the Issuer, meet the requirements of Section 475.54 of the Act.

#### 2.02 Interest Payment Dates; Record Date.

- A. The Bonds shall bear interest at the annual rates stated therefor in Section 2.01. The interest shall be payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 in each year (each referred to herein as an "Interest Payment Date") commencing on August 1, 2025. Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
- B. The Bond Registrar designated below shall make all interest payments with respect to the Bonds by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name each Bond is registered (the "Holder") and in each case at the address shown on the bond registration records maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not on a business day) of the calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof as of the Regular Record Date, and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof at the close of business on a date fixed for the payment of such defaulted interest (the "Special Record Date"). The Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Bond Registrar to the Holders not less than ten (10) days prior thereto. The term "Holder" shall also include those lawfully entitled to take actions on behalf of the beneficial owners of the Bonds for purposes of any consent or approvals given by Holders.
- C. If the date for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or the city where the principal office of the Bond Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.
- 2.03 <u>Redemption.</u> A. The Bonds maturing in the years 2026 through 2035 shall not be subject to redemption and prepayment before maturity, but those maturing, or subject to mandatory redemption, in the year 2036 and in subsequent years shall each be subject to redemption and prepayment at the option of the Issuer on February 1, 2035, and on any business day thereafter, in whole or in part, and if in part, at the option of the Issuer and in such manner as the Issuer shall determine at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.
- B. In the event any of the Bonds are called for redemption, notice thereof identifying the Bonds to be redeemed will be given by the Bond Registrar by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail (postage prepaid) at least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar; provided however, that so long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), notice of redemption shall be given in accordance with the terms of the Representation Letter hereinafter described. Failure to give notice by mail to any registered owner, or any defect therein, will not affect the validity of any proceeding for the redemption of Bonds not affected by such defect or failure. Bonds so called for redemption will cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date, provided that the funds for the redemption are on deposit with the place of payment at that time.
- C. If less than all the Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption while the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., the Issuer or the Bond Registrar designated below will notify DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be prepaid. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed. If less than all the Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption and the Bonds are not registered in the name of Cede & Co., the Bond Registrar will determine by lot or other manner deemed fair, the amount of each maturity to be redeemed. All prepayments shall be at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest.

#### Section 3. Registration; Global Book Entry System.

3.01 <u>Designation of Bond Registrar.</u> The City Council appoints U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, authenticating agent and transfer agent for the Bonds (such bank or its successors is herein referred to as the "Bond Registrar"), and shall do so until a successor Bond Registrar is duly appointed, all pursuant to a contract which the Issuer and the Bond Registrar shall execute which is consistent herewith and which the Mayor and Administrator are authorized to execute and deliver. A successor Bond Registrar shall be a bank or trust company eligible for designation as bond registrar pursuant to the Act. The terms of the appointment of the successor Bond Registrar and its duties shall be specified in a contract between the Issuer and such successor Bond Registrar that is consistent herewith and that the Mayor and Administrator are authorized to execute and deliver. The Bond Registrar, which may act through an agent, shall also serve as paying agent until and unless a successor paying agent is duly appointed. The Bond Registrar shall pay principal and interest on the Bonds to the registered Holders (or record Holders) of the Bonds in the manner set forth herein. The Issuer agrees to pay the reasonable and customary charges for the services of such Bond Registrar.

- 3.02 <u>Designation of Depository.</u> DTC, a Securities and Exchange Commission designated depository, a limited purpose New York trust company, a member of the Federal Reserve System, and a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, is designated as the depository (the "Depository") with respect to the Bonds.
- 3.03 <u>Authentication of Bonds.</u> No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless or until either (i) the Bond Registrar's authentication certificate on such Bond, substantially set forth in Section 4.01 hereof, shall have been duly executed by an authorized representative of the Bond Registrar or (ii) the Bonds have been manually executed by at least one officer of the City Council. Authentication certificates on different Bonds need not be signed by the same representative. The Bond Registrar shall authenticate each Bond by execution of the Certificate of Authentication on the Bond and shall date each Bond in the space provided as of the date on which the Bond is registered. For purposes of delivering the original Bonds, the Bond Registrar shall insert as the date of registration the date of original issue. The executed Authentication Certificate or the manual signature of at least one officer of the City Council on each Bond shall be conclusive evidence that it has been authenticated and delivered under this Resolution.

#### 3.04 <u>Bond Register; Transfer; Exchange.</u>

- A. The Issuer shall cause to be kept by the Bond Registrar at its principal office, a bond register in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as the Bond Registrar may prescribe, the Issuer shall provide for the registration of the Bonds and the registration of transfers of the Bonds entitled to be registered or transferred as herein provided. In the event of the resignation or removal of the Bond Registrar or its incapability of acting as such, the bond registration records shall be maintained at the office of the successor Bond Registrar as may be appointed by the City Council.
- B. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar, the Issuer shall execute, if required by law or this Resolution, and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, if required by law or this Resolution, date (in the space designated Date of Registration) and deliver, in the name(s) of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of the like aggregate principal amount having the same stated maturity and interest rate, as requested by the transferor; provided, however, that no Bond may be registered in blank or in the name of "bearer" or similar designation. Transfer of a Bond may be made on the Issuer's books by the registered owner in person or by the registered owner's attorney duly authorized in writing. Transfers shall be subject to reasonable regulations of the Issuer contained in any agreement with, or notice to, the Bond Registrar, including regulations which permit the Bond Registrar to close its transfer books between record dates and payment dates. The Issuer and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to make any transfer or exchange of any Bonds called for redemption or to make any such exchange or transfer of the Bonds during the 15 days next preceding the date of the first publication or the mailing (if there is no publication) of notice of redemption in the case of a proposed redemption of the Bonds.
- C. Every Bond presented or surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner thereof, with signature guaranteed, or by the registered Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing, and shall include written instructions as to the details of the transfer of the Bond. When any Bond is presented to the Bond Registrar for transfer, the Bond Registrar may refuse to transfer the same until it is satisfied that the endorsement on such Bond or separate instrument of transfer is valid and genuine and that the requested transfer is legally authorized. The Bond Registrar shall incur no liability for the refusal, in good faith, to make transfers which it, in its judgment, deems improper or unauthorized.
- D. At the option of the Holder, replacement Bonds may be exchanged for Bonds of any authorized denomination or denominations of a like aggregate principal amount and stated maturity, upon surrender of the Bonds to be exchanged at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. Whenever any Bonds are so surrendered for exchange, the Issuer shall execute (if required by law or this Resolution), and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate (if required by law or this Resolution), date (in the space designated Date of Registration) and deliver the replacement Bonds which the Holder making the exchange is entitled to receive. Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. may not be exchanged for Bonds of smaller denominations.
- E. All Bonds surrendered upon any exchange or transfer provided for in this Resolution shall be promptly canceled by the Bond Registrar and thereafter disposed of as directed by the Issuer.
- F. Each Bond delivered upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry all of the rights to interest, accrued and unpaid and to accrue, which are carried by such other Bond. All Bonds delivered in exchange for or upon transfer of Bonds shall be valid general obligations of the Issuer evidencing the same debt, shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Resolution as the Bonds surrendered for such exchange or transfer, and shall carry all the rights to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bonds.
- G. The Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange of any Bond and any legal or unusual costs regarding transfers and lost bonds.
- H. Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. may not after their original delivery, be transferred or exchanged except in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Representation Letter and:
  - (i) upon exchange of a Bond after a partial redemption, if provided in Section 2.03 of this Resolution;
  - (ii) to any successor of the Depository (or its nominee) or any substitute depository (a "Substitute Depository") designated pursuant to clause (iii) below; provided that any successor of the Depository or any Substitute Depository must be both a "clearing corporation" as defined in the Minnesota Uniform Commercial Code, Minnesota Statutes, Section 336.8-102, and a qualified and registered "clearing agency" as provided in Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
  - (iii) to a Substitute Depository designated by and acceptable to the Issuer upon (a) the determination by the Depository that the Bonds shall no longer be eligible for its depository services or (b) a determination by the Issuer that the Depository is no longer able to carry out its functions; provided that any Substitute Depository must be qualified to act as such, as provided in subclause (ii) above: or

- (iv) in the event that (a) the Depository shall resign or discontinue its services for the Bonds or be declared no longer able to carry out its functions and the Issuer is unable to locate a Substitute Depository within two months following the resignation or discontinuance or determination of noneligibility, or (b) the Issuer determines in its sole discretion that (1) the continuation of the bookentry system described herein might adversely affect the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, or (2) it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, then the Issuer shall notify the Holders of its determination and of the availability of replacement Bonds to Holders. The Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Depository shall cooperate in providing Replacement Bonds to Holders requesting the same and the registration, transfer and exchange of such Bonds shall thereafter be conducted as provided in Section 3 of this Resolution.
- I. In the event of the designation of a Substitute Depository as authorized by clause H., the Bond Registrar, upon presentation of a Bond, shall register their transfer to the Substitute Depository, and the Substitute Depository shall be treated as the Depository for all purposes and functions under this Resolution. The Representation Letter shall not apply to the Substitute Depository unless the Issuer and the Substitute Depository so agree, and the execution of a similar agreement is authorized.

#### 3.05 Persons Deemed Owners; Payment.

- A. The Issuer and the Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the owner of such Bond for the purpose of receiving payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest (subject to the payment provisions in Section 2.02 above), on such Bond and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and neither the Issuer nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
- B. For the purposes of all actions, consents and other matters affecting Holders of Bonds issued under this Resolution as from time to time supplemented, other than payments, redemptions, and purchases, the Issuer may (but shall not be obligated to) treat as the Holder of a Bond the beneficial owner of the Bond instead of the person in whose name the Bond is registered. For that purpose, the Issuer may ascertain the identity of the beneficial owner of the Bond by such means as the Bond Registrar in its sole discretion deems appropriate, including but not limited to a certificate from the Depository or other person in whose name the Bond is registered identifying such beneficial owner.
- C. The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable by the Bond Registrar in such funds as are legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America. The Issuer shall pay the reasonable and customary charges of the Bond Registrar for the disbursement of principal and interest.

#### 3.06 Use of Global Book-Entry System.

- A. There has been previously submitted to this City Council a form of Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations (the "Representation Letter") between the Issuer and the Depository setting forth various matters relating to the Depository and its role with respect to the Bonds. The terms and conditions of the Representation Letter are ratified.
- B. All of the Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Payment of interest on and principal of any Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer or New York Clearing House or equivalent same day funds by 10:00 a.m. CT or as soon as possible thereafter following the Bond Registrar's receipt of funds from the Issuer on each Interest Payment Date to the account of Cede & Co. on each Interest Payment Date at the address indicated in or pursuant to the Representation Letter.
- C. So long as DTC is the Depository or it or its nominee is the Holder of any Bonds, the Issuer shall comply with the provisions of the Representation Letter, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- D. Additional matters with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by Holders and payments on the Bonds are set forth in the Representation Letter.
- E. The provisions in the Representation Letter are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this resolution, and if and to the extent any such provisions are inconsistent with the other provisions of this resolution, the provisions in the Representation Letter shall control
- 3.07 <u>Mutilated, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.</u> If a Bond becomes mutilated or is destroyed, stolen, or lost, the Bond Registrar will deliver a new Bond of like amount, number, maturity date, and tenor in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution for any Bond destroyed, stolen, or lost, upon the payment of the reasonable expenses and charges of the Bond Registrar and the Issuer in connection therewith, including the cost of printing new Bonds; and, in the case of a Bond destroyed, stolen, or lost, upon filing with the Bond Registrar and the Issuer of evidence satisfactory to it and the Issuer that the Bond was destroyed, stolen, or lost, and of the ownership thereof, and upon furnishing to the Bond Registrar of an appropriate bond or indemnity in form, substance, and amount satisfactory to it and the Issuer and as provided by law, in which both the Issuer and the Bond Registrar must be named as obligees. Bonds so surrendered to the Bond Registrar will be canceled by the Bond Registrar and evidence of such cancellation must be given to the Issuer. If the mutilated, destroyed, stolen, or lost Bond has already matured or been called for redemption in accordance with its terms, it is not necessary to issue a new Bond prior to payment.

## Section 4. Form of the Bonds.

4.01 The Bonds shall be printed or typewritten in substantially the following form:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MINNESOTA COUNTY OF YELLOW MEDICINE

R-\_ \$\_\_\_\_

## CITY OF CANBY GENERAL OBLIGATION IMPROVEMENT BOND, SERIES 2025A

Rate	Maturity Date	Date of Original Issue	CUSIP
	February 1, 20	, 2025	
REGISTERED OWNER:	CEDE & CO.		
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:	DOLLARS		

The City of Canby, Yellow Medicine County, Minnesota (the "Issuer"), certifies that it is indebted and for value received, promises to pay to the registered owner specified above or on the Registration Certificate attached hereto, or registered assigns, in the manner hereinafter set forth, the principal amount specified above, on the maturity date specified above, and to pay interest thereon from the date of original issue set forth above, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date (defined below) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the principal amount is paid, said interest being at the rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each referred to herein as an "Interest Payment Date") commencing on August 1, 2025, at the rate per annum specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, until the principal amount is paid or has been provided for. This Bond will bear interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from the date of original issue hereof set forth above.

Payment. The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond are payable by wire transfer (or other agreed means of payment) on each payment date no later than 12:00 noon (New York, New York time) upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, paying agent, authenticating agent and transfer agent (the "Bond Registrar"), or at the office of such successor bond registrar as may be designated by the Issuer. Interest on this Bond will be paid on each Interest Payment Date (by 12:00 noon, New York, New York time) by wire transfer (or other agreed means of payment) to the person in whose name this Bond is registered (the "Holder" or "Bondholder") on the registration books of the Issuer maintained by the Bond Registrar and at the address appearing thereon at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Holder hereof as of the Regular Record Date, and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof at the close of business on a date fixed for the payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of the special record date shall be given by the Bond Registrar to the Holders not less than (10) ten days prior thereto. The Bond Registrar shall make all payments with respect to this Bond without, except for payment of principal on the Bond, the presentation or surrender of this Bond, and all such payments shall discharge the obligations of the Issuer to the extent of the payments so made. The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America. For the prompt and full payment of such principal and interest as they become due, the full faith and credit of the Issuer are irrevocably pledged.

Date of Payment Not Business Day. If the date for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or the city where the principal office of the Bond Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.

**Optional Redemption.** The Bonds maturing in the years 2026 through 2035 shall not be subject to redemption before maturity, but those maturing in the year 2036 and subsequent years are each subject to redemption and prepayment at the option of the Issuer on February 1, 2035, and on any business day thereafter, in whole or in part, and if in part at the option of the Issuer and in such manner as the Issuer shall determine and by lot as to Bonds maturing in the same year, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Notice of and Selection of Bonds for Redemption. Not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption and prepayment of any Bonds, notice of redemption shall be mailed to each registered owner of a Bond to be redeemed; provided, however, that so long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), notice of redemption shall be given in accordance with the terms of the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations which has been executed by the Issuer and DTC (the "Representation Letter").

If less than all the Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption while the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., the Issuer or the Bond Registrar designated below will notify DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be prepaid. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed. If less than all the Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption and the Bonds are not registered in the name of Cede & Co., the Bond Registrar will determine by lot or other manner deemed fair, the amount of each maturity to be redeemed. All prepayments shall be at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest. If any Bond is redeemed in part, upon surrender of the Bond being redeemed, the Issuer shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the registered owner of such Bond, a Bond in like form in the principal amount equal to that portion of the Bond so surrendered not being redeemed.

Issuance; Purpose. This Bond is one of a series issued by the Issuer in the total aggregate amount of \$500,000 General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2025A, all of like original issue date and tenor, except as to number, maturity date, redemption privilege, denomination and interest rate, pursuant to: (i) the authority contained in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 429 and 475; (ii) the Constitution of the State of Minnesota and all other laws thereunto enabling; and (iii) an authorizing resolution adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on January 15, 2025 (the "Resolution"), and is issued for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of local public improvements. The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable primarily from special assessments levied or to be levied against benefited property and ad valorem taxes pledged to the Debt Service Account in the special fund of the Issuer entitled "2025 Improvement Program Fund," as set forth in the Resolution to which reference is made for a full statement of rights and powers thereby conferred.

General Obligation. This Bond constitutes a general obligation of the Issuer, and to provide moneys for the prompt and full payment of the principal and interest when the same become due, the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the Issuer have been and are irrevocably pledged.

**Denominations; Exchange.** The Bonds of this series are issued as fully registered bonds without coupons, in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Issuer will, at the request of the registered owner, issue one or more new fully registered Bonds in the name of the registered owner in the aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal balance of this Bond, and of like tenor except as to number and principal amount at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, but only in the manner and subject to the limitations provided in the Resolution and the Representation Letter. Reference is made to the Resolution for a description of the rights and duties of the Bond Registrar. Copies of the Resolution are on file in the principal office of the Bond Registrar.

Registration; Transfer. This Bond shall be registered in the name of the payee on the books of the Issuer by presenting this Bond for registration to the Bond Registrar, whose representative will endorse his or her name and note the date of registration opposite the name of the payee in the Registration Certificate attached hereto. Thereafter this Bond may be transferred by delivery with an assignment duly executed by the Holder or the Holder's legal representative, and the Issuer and Bond Registrar may treat the Holder as the person exclusively entitled to exercise all the rights and powers of an owner until this Bond is presented with such assignment for registration of transfer, accompanied by assurance of the nature provided by law that the assignment is genuine and effective, and until such transfer is registered on said books and noted hereon by the Bond Registrar, all subject to the terms and conditions provided in the Resolution and the Representation Letter and to reasonable regulations of the Issuer contained in any agreement with, or notice to, the Bond Registrar. Thereupon the Issuer shall execute (if required by law or the Resolution) and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate (if required by law or the Resolution) and deliver, in exchange for this Bond, one or more new fully registered Bonds in the name of the transferce, of an authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Bond, of the same maturity, and bearing interest at the same rate.

Fees Upon Transfer or Loss. The Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange of this Bond and any legal or unusual costs regarding transfers and lost Bonds. No service charge shall be made by the Issuer for any transfer or exchange hereinbefore referred to but the Issuer may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

**Treatment of Registered Owner.** The Issuer and Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as herein provided and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, and neither the Issuer nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

**Authentication.** This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under the Resolution until either (i) the Bond Registrar's Authentication Certificate hereon shall have been executed by the Bond Registrar by one of its authorized representatives or (ii) the Bond has been manually executed by at least one officer of the governing body of the Issuer.

Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The Bonds of this issue have been designated by the Issuer as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to the deduction of interest expenses allocable to the Bonds by financial institutions.

IT IS CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to happen and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond in order to make it a valid and binding general obligation of the Issuer enforceable in accordance with its terms, have been done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form, time and manner as so required; that, if necessary for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds of this issue, ad valorem taxes may be levied upon all taxable property in the Issuer without limitation as to rate or amount; and that the issuance of this Bond on the date of original issue hereof and the date of its actual original issuance and delivery, does not exceed any constitutional, charter or statutory limitation of indebtedness.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Canby, Yellow Medicine County, Minnesota, by its governing body, has caused this Bond to be executed in its name by the facsimile or manual signature of the Mayor and attested by the facsimile or manual signature of the Administrator, the Issuer having no seal or said seal having been intentionally omitted as permitted by law.

ATTEST:	
(Form- No signature required) Administrator	(Form-No signature required)  Mayor
Date of Authentication:	_
ВС	D REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE
	the books reflect the ownership of the Bond registered in the name of the owner named above in the dabove and this Bond is one of the Bonds of the series issued pursuant to the Resolution hereinabove.
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA Bond Registrar	
ByAuthorized Representative	

This Bond must be registered as to both principal and interest in the name of the owner on the books to be kept by U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota as Bond Registrar. No transfer of this Bond shall be valid unless made on said books by the registered owner or the owner's attorney thereunto duly authorized and similarly noted on the registration books. The ownership of the unpaid principal balance of this Bond and the interest accruing thereon is registered on the books of U.S. Bank National Association in the name of the registered owner last noted below.

Date	Registered Owner	Signature of Bond Registrar
//25	Cede & Co. c/o The Depository Trust Company 55 Water Street New York, NY 10041 Federal Taxpayer I.D. No.:	Signature of Boliu Registrar
	13-2555119	

#### ASSIGNMENT

	(Name and Address of Assignee)
	Social Security or Other
	Identifying Number of Assignee
the within Bond and all rights thereunder and	
with full power of substitution in the premise	attorney to transfer the said Bond on the books kept for registration thereo
with run power of substitution in the premis-	cs.
Dated:	
	NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the
	name of the registered owner as it appears upon the face of the
	within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargemen or any change whatsoever.
Signature Guaranteed:	

Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL, inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

- 4.02 <u>Preparation and Execution.</u> The Bonds shall be prepared for execution in accordance with the approved form and shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Administrator. The legal opinion of Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, P.A. shall be appended to each Bond. The corporate seal of the Issuer may be omitted from the Bonds as permitted by law. In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on the Bonds shall cease to be an officer before delivery of the Bonds, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery.
- 4.03 <u>Delivery of the Bonds.</u> Delivery of the Bonds and payment of the purchase price shall be made at a place mutually satisfactory to the Issuer and the Purchaser. Printed or typewritten, and executed Bonds shall be furnished by the Issuer without cost to the Purchaser. The Bonds, when prepared in accordance with this Resolution and executed, shall be delivered by or under the direction of the Administrator to the Purchaser upon receipt of the purchase price plus accrued interest.

#### Section 5. Covenants, Accounts and Tax Levies.

National Securities Exchange)

- 5.01 Covenants. It is determined that the Project will directly and indirectly benefit abutting property, and the Issuer covenants with the holders from time to time of the Bonds as follows:
  - A. The Issuer has caused or will cause the special assessments for the Project (the "Special Assessments") to be promptly levied so that the first installment will be collectible not later than 2025 and will take all steps necessary to assure prompt

collection, and the levy of the Special Assessments is authorized for purposes of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.55, Subdivision 3. The City Council will cause all further actions and proceedings to be taken with due diligence that are required for the construction of each portion of the Project financed wholly or partly from the proceeds of the Bonds, and for the final and valid levy of the Special Assessments and the appropriation of any other funds needed to pay the Bonds and interest thereon when due.

- B. It is recognized that the Issuer's liability on the Bonds is not limited to the Special Assessments and ad valorem taxes pledged herein, and the City Council covenants and agrees that in the event of any current or anticipated deficiency in Special Assessments or ad valorem taxes, it will levy upon all taxable property within the Issuer and cause to be extended, assessed, and collected, any additional taxes found necessary for full payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, without limitation as to rate or amount.
- C. The Issuer will keep complete and accurate books and records showing: receipts and disbursements in connection with the improvements and Special Assessments levied therefor and other funds appropriated for their payment, collections and disbursements thereof, moneys on hand and the balance of unpaid Special Assessments.
- D. The Issuer will cause its books and records to be audited and will furnish copies of such audit reports to any interested person upon request.
- E. The City Council covenants and agrees with the holders of the Bonds and with its taxpayers that it will assess against benefited property not less than 20% of the cost of each Project financed hereunder within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, Subdivision 1(3).
- F. The Issuer covenants and agrees that it will let all construction contracts not heretofore let within one year after ordering each Project financed hereunder unless the resolution ordering the Project specifies a different time limit for the letting of construction contracts.
- G. The Issuer further covenants and agrees that it will do and perform as soon as they may be done all acts and things necessary for the final and valid levy of such Special Assessments, and in the event that any such assessment be at any time held invalid with respect to any lot, piece or parcel of land due to any error, defect, or irregularity in any action or proceedings taken or to be taken by the Issuer or the City Council, or any of the Issuer officers or employees, either in the making of the Special Assessments or in the performance of any condition precedent thereto, the Issuer and the City Council will forthwith do all further acts and take all further proceedings as may be required by law to make the assessments a valid and binding lien upon such property.
- 5.02 The Fund. There is created a special fund to be designated the "2025 Improvement Program Fund" (the "Fund") to be administered and maintained by the Administrator as a bookkeeping account separate and apart from all other funds maintained in the official financial records of the Issuer. The Fund shall be maintained in the manner herein specified until all of the Bonds and the interest thereon have been fully paid. There shall be maintained in the Fund two (2) separate accounts, to be designated the "Construction Account" and "Debt Service Account," respectively:

## A. <u>Construction Account.</u>

- (1) On receipt of the purchase price of the Bonds, the Issuer shall credit (a) proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, less amounts allocated as capitalized interest funded from Bond proceeds (the "Capitalized Interest") and less amounts used to pay part of the interest cost of the issue as allowed by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.56 (the "Additional Interest") and less amounts allocated to accrued interest paid by the Purchaser upon closing and delivery of the Bonds (the "Accrued Interest"); plus (b) any Special Assessments levied with respect to the Project and collected prior to completion of the Project and payment of the costs thereof, to the Construction Account.
- (2) From the Construction Account there shall be paid all costs and expenses of making the Project, including the cost of any construction contracts heretofore let and all other costs incurred and to be incurred of the kind authorized in Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.65; and the moneys in said account shall be used for no other purpose except as otherwise provided by law; provided that the proceeds of the Bonds may also be used to the extent necessary to pay interest on the Bonds due prior to the anticipated date of commencement of the collection of taxes or Special Assessments herein levied or covenanted to be levied; and provided further that if upon completion of the Project there shall remain any unexpended balance in the Construction Account, the balance (other than any Special Assessments) may be transferred by the City Council to the fund of any other improvement instituted pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429, and provided further that any Special Assessments credited to the Construction Account shall only be applied towards payment of the costs of the Project upon adoption of a resolution by the City Council determining that the application of the Special Assessments for such purpose will not cause the Issuer to no longer be in compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.61, Subdivision 1. Other costs for which payment from the Construction Account is authorized shall include costs of legal, financial advisory, and other professional services, printing and publication costs, and costs of issuance of the Bonds.

#### B. <u>Debt Service Account.</u>

(1) There is pledged and appropriated and there shall be credited to the Debt Service Account: (i) the Accrued Interest; (ii) the Capitalized Interest; (iii) the Additional Interest; (iv) Special Assessments levied or to be levied for the Project and either initially credited to the Construction Account and not already spent as permitted above and required to pay any principal and interest due on the Bonds or collected subsequent to the completion of the Project and payment of the costs thereof; @@(iv) the ad valorem taxes hereinafter levied; (v) all funds remaining in the Construction Account after completion of the Project and payment of the costs thereof, not so transferred to the account of another improvement; (vi) any and all other moneys which are properly available and are appropriated by the governing body of the Issuer to the Debt Service Account; and (vii) investment earnings on the monies identified in the foregoing clauses (i) through (vi). The

proceeds of the Bonds described in clauses (i) through (iii) of the preceding sentence shall be used for payment of interest on the Bonds.

- (2) The money in such account shall be used for no purpose other than the payment of principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds and any other general obligation bonds of the Issuer hereafter issued by the Issuer and made payable from said account as provided by law; provided, however, that if any payment of principal or interest shall become due when there is not sufficient money in the Debt Service Account, the Administrator shall pay the same from any other fund of the Issuer, which fund shall be reimbursed from the Debt Service Account when the balance therein is sufficient.
- 5.03 Tax Levy. A. For the prompt and full payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due, the full faith and credit and taxing power of the Issuer are irrevocably pledged. There is levied a direct annual ad valorem tax upon all taxable property in the Issuer which shall be spread upon the tax rolls and collected with and as part of other general property taxes in the Issuer. Said levies are for the years and in the amounts set forth in ATTACHMENT A hereto, which is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.
- B. The tax levies are such that if collected in full they, together with estimated collections of investment earnings and Special Assessments herein pledged for payment of the Bonds, will produce at least 5% in excess of the amount needed to meet when due the principal and interest payments on the Bonds.
- C. The tax levies shall be irrepealable so long as any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid; provided, however, that on November 30 of each year, while any Bonds issued hereunder remain outstanding, the City Council shall reduce or cancel the above levies to the extent of funds available in the Debt Service Account to pay principal and interest due during the ensuing year, and shall direct the County Auditor to reduce the levy for such calendar year by that amount.
- 5.04 <u>Investments.</u> Monies on deposit in the Construction Account and in the Debt Service Account may, at the discretion of the Administrator, be invested in securities permitted by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 118A, that any such investments shall mature at such times and in such amounts as will permit for payment of project costs and/or payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due.

#### Section 6. Tax Covenants.

#### 6.01 General.

- A. The Issuer covenants and agrees with the Holders of the Bonds that the Issuer will (i) take all action on its part necessary to cause the interest on the Bonds to be exempt from federal income taxes including, without limitation, restricting, to the extent necessary, the yield on investments made with the proceeds of the Bonds and investment earnings thereon, making required payments to the federal government, if any, and maintaining books and records in a specified manner, where appropriate, and (ii) refrain from taking any action which would cause interest on the Bonds to be subject to federal income taxes, including, without limitation, refraining from spending the proceeds of the Bonds and investment earnings thereon on certain specified purposes.
- B. The Issuer covenants with the Holders from time to time of the Bonds that it will not take, or permit to be taken by any of its officers, employees or agents, any action which would cause the interest payable on the Bonds to become subject to taxation under the Internal Revenue Code; and that it will take, or it will cause its officers, employees or agents to take, all affirmative actions within its powers which may be necessary to insure that such interest will not become subject to taxation under the Code. The term "Internal Revenue Code" or "Code" as used herein includes the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all regulations, amended regulations and proposed regulations issued thereunder, as now existing, or as hereafter amended or proposed.
- C. No portion of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used directly or indirectly to acquire higher yielding investments or to replace funds which were used directly or indirectly to acquire higher yielding investments, except (i) for a reasonable temporary period until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the Bonds were issued and (ii) in addition to the above in an amount not greater than the lesser of five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Bonds or \$100,000. To this effect any proceeds of the Bonds and any sums from time to time held in the Debt Service Account (or any other Issuer account which will be used to pay principal or interest to become due on the Bonds payable therefrom) in excess of amounts which under then applicable federal arbitrage restrictions may be invested without regard to yield shall not be invested at a yield in excess of the applicable yield restrictions imposed by said arbitrage regulations on such investments after taking into account any applicable "temporary periods" or "minor portion" made available under the federal arbitrage regulations. Money in those funds shall not be invested in obligations or deposits issued by, guaranteed by or insured by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof if and to the extent that such investment would cause the Bonds to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.
- 6.02. <u>Small-Issuer Rebate Exception</u>. For purposes of qualifying for the small-issuer exception to the federal arbitrage rebate requirements, the Issuer finds, determines and declares:
  - A. the Issuer is a governmental unit with general taxing powers;
  - B. the Bonds are not "private activity bonds" as defined in Section 141 of the Code;
  - C. 95% or more of the net proceeds of the Bonds are to be used for local governmental activities of the Issuer; and
  - D. the aggregate face amount of the tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds) issued by the Issuer during the calendar year in which the Bonds are issued is not reasonably expected to exceed \$5,000,000, all within the meaning of Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code.
- 6.03. <u>Bank Qualification</u>. In order to qualify the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, the Issuer makes the following factual statements and representations:

- A. the Bonds are not "private activity bonds" as defined in Section 141 of the Code;
- B. the Issuer designates the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code;
- C. the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds, treating qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as not being private activity bonds) which will by issued by the Issuer (and all entities whose obligations will be aggregated with those of the Issuer) during the calendar year in which the Bonds are being issued will not exceed \$10,000,000; and
- D. not more than \$10,000,000 of obligations issued by the Issuer during the calendar year in which the Bonds are being issued have been designated for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.
- 6.04 <u>Arbitrage Certification</u>. The Mayor and the Administrator, being the officers of the Issuer charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds pursuant to this Resolution, are authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Purchaser an arbitrage certification in order to satisfy the provisions of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
- 6.05 <u>Opinion of Counsel</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 6, any requirement imposed hereunder or under Section 5 hereof may be deemed inapplicable and of no force or effect if an opinion of counsel is rendered to the Issuer by nationally recognized Bond Counsel to the effect that the failure to impose such requirement will not adversely effect the tax exempt status of interest on the Bonds.

#### Section 7. Certificates of Proceedings; Miscellaneous.

- 7.01 Filing of Resolution; County Auditor Certificate. The Administrator is directed to file a certified copy of this Resolution in the office of the County Auditor of Yellow Medicine County, along with such other information as the County Auditor may require, and to obtain from the County Auditor a certificate stating that the Bonds herein authorized have been duly entered on the Auditor's register and that the tax required by law for the payment of said Bonds has been levied.
- 7.02 <u>Authentication of Transcript.</u> The officers of the Issuer are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the Purchaser and to Bond Counsel certified copies of all proceedings and records of the Issuer relating to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds and to the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer and other affidavits and certificates as may reasonably be requested to show the facts relating to the legality and marketability of the Bonds as such facts appear from the official books and records of the officers' custody or otherwise known to them. All of such certified copies, certificates and affidavits, including any heretofore furnished, constitute representations of the Issuer as to the correctness of facts recited therein and the actions stated therein to have been taken.
- 7.03 Offering Materials. The Official Statement relating to the Bonds, on file with the Administrator and presented to this meeting, is approved and deemed final, and the furnishing thereof to prospective purchasers of the Bonds is ratified and confirmed, insofar as the same relates to the Bonds and the sale thereof. The Mayor and the Administrator are authorized and directed to certify that they have examined the Official Statement prepared and circulated in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds and that to the best of their knowledge and belief the Official Statement is a complete and accurate representation of the facts and representations made therein as of the date of the Official Statement.
- 7.04 <u>Absent or Disabled Officers</u>. In the event of the absence or disability of the Mayor or the Administrator, such officers or members of the City Council as in the opinion of the Issuer's attorney may act in their behalf shall, without further act or authorization, execute and deliver the Bonds, and do all things and execute all instruments and documents required to be done or executed by such absent or disabled officers.
- 7.05 <u>Defeasance.</u> When all Bonds have been discharged as provided in this paragraph, all pledges, covenants and other rights granted by this resolution to the registered holders of the Bonds shall, to the extent permitted by law, cease. The Issuer may discharge its obligations with respect to any Bonds which are due on any date by irrevocably depositing with the Bond Registrar on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full; or if any Bond should not be paid when due, it may nevertheless be discharged by depositing with the Bond Registrar a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full with interest accrued to the date of such deposit. The Issuer may also discharge its obligations with respect to any prepayable Bonds called for redemption on any date when they are prepayable according to their terms, by depositing with the Bond Registrar on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full, provided that notice of redemption thereof has been duly given. The Issuer may also at any time discharge its obligations with respect to any Bonds, subject to the provisions of law now or hereafter authorizing and regulating such action, by depositing irrevocably in escrow, with a suitable banking institution qualified by law as an escrow agent for this purpose, cash or securities described in Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.67, Subdivision 8, bearing interest payable at such times and at such rates and maturing on such dates as shall be required, without regard to sale and/or reinvestment, to pay all amounts to become due thereon to maturity or, if notice of redemption as herein required has been duly provided for, to such earlier redemption date.
- Section 8. Continuing Disclosure. The City Council acknowledges that the Bonds are subject to the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"). The Rule governs the obligations of certain underwriters to require that issuers of municipal bonds enter into agreements for the benefit of the Holders to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds. To provide for the public availability of certain information relating to the Bonds and the security therefor and to permit underwriters of the Bonds to comply with the Rule, which will enhance the marketability of the Bonds, the Mayor and the Administrator are authorized and directed to execute a Limited Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form of the Certificate currently on file in the office of the Issuer.

Adopted January 15, 2025	
ATTEST:	Mayor
Administrator	

December 18<sup>th</sup>-31<sup>st</sup> vendor transactions were reviewed. A motion was made by Fliss and seconded by Kack to approve the vendor transactions in the amount of \$677,824.37. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

City Administrator, Bonnie Merritt, provided an administrator's report. The council was informed about changes to the on-screen theater advertisement project. The contract period is changing from a 3-year contract to a 1-year contract. This will hopefully provide an opportunity for more businesses to participate as it is a less expensive commitment. Proceeds go towards utility costs at the Canby Theater. Information regarding the 2024 pay equity report was provided.

A motion was made by Kack and seconded by Cram to adjourn the meeting. All voted in favor. None voted against. The motion was carried.

	Nancy Bormann, Mayor	
ATTEST:		
Bonnie Merritt, City Administrator		